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B S R & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

49/179A, 37 Floor, Telephone: +91 484 4148 500
Syama Business Centre, Fax: +91 484 4148 501
NH-47 Bypass Road,

Vyttila, Kochi — 682 019 - India

Independent Auditors Report

To the Members of Asianet Digital Network Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of Asianet Digital Network Private Limited (the “Company"”)
which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2022, and the statement of profit and loss (including
other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2022, and its profit and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's and Board of Directors Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs, profit/ loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
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B S R & Associates LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Asianet Digital Network Private Limited

Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company'’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Asianet Digital Network Private Limited

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order’) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A" a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act.

e. Onthe basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2022 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2022
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f.  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B”.

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

a. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

¢c. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d (i) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the Note 41(a) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:

+ directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or

* provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(i) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the Note 41(b) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from
any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall;

« directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Asianet Digital Network Private Limited

whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
= provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) above contain any material misstatement.

e. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.
C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
public company. Accordingly, the provisions of Section 197 of the Act are not applicable to the
Company.

For B S R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’'s Registration No.:116231W/W-100024

Baby Paul

Partner

Place: Kochi Membership No.: 218255
Date: 22 August 2022 ICAI UDIN:22218255APOXEL9026
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Asianet Digital Network Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(i) (@) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

(B)
(i) (b)

(©

(d

(€)

(i) (a)

(b)

details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.
The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets by which all
fixed assets are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years other than cables and
Set Top Boxes ('STB’) installed at subscribers’ locations. tn our opinion, this periodicity of
physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of
its assets. Pursuant to the programme, certain fixed assets were physically verified during the
year. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. With respect to the cables
and STB's installed at subscribers’ locations, management is of the view that it is not possible
to physically verify these assets due to their nature and location. According to the information
and explanations given to us, the existence of STB's is verified on the basis of the ‘active user
status in the system.

The Company does not have any immovable property (other than immovable properties where
the Company is the lessee and the leases agreements are duly executed in favour of the
lessee). Accordingly, clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
(including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

The inventory, except goods-in-transit has been physically verified by the management during
the year.For stocks lying with third parties at the year-end, written confirmations have been
obtained and for goods-in-transit subsequent evidence of receipts has been linked with
inventory records. In our opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable and
procedures and coverage as followed by management were appropriate. No discrepancies
were noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the book records that were more
than 10% in the aggregate of each class of inventory

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets. In our opinion, the quarterly returns or statements filed by the
Company with such banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of account
of the Company except as follows:
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Asianet Digital Network Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Continued)
Quarter | Name of | Particulars Amount Amount Amount Whether
bank as per as of return/state
books of | reported | differenc ment
account in the e subsequent
quarterly ly rectified
return/
statement
Q1 Federal Inventory 105.08 52.50 (52.58) | No.  Refer
Bank, and Capital Note 15 to
Work in Financial
HDFC Progress Statements
Bank
Q2 Federal Trade 654.40 623.40 (31.00) | No. Refer
Bank, Receivables Note 15 to
Financial
HDFC Inventory 78.49 37.20 (41.29) | Statements
Bank and Capital
Work in
Progress
Trade 594.04 163.50 (430.54)
Payables
Q3 Federal Trade 612.46 628.60 16.14 | No.  Refer
Bank, Receivables Note 15 to
Financial
HDFC Inventory 99.84 50.30 (49.54) | Statements
Bank and Capital
Work in
Progress
Trade 521.76 158.50 (363.26)
Payables
(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination

of the records of the Company, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the
nature of loans, secured or unsecured, or made any investments in companies, firms, limited
liability partnership or any other parties during the year. Accordingly, provisions of clauses
3(iii)(c) to 3(iii)(f) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. The Company has provided
guarantee and security to Companies during the year in respect of which the requisite
information is as below. The Company has not provided any guarantee or security to limited
liability partnership or any other parties during the year.

(a) Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations
given to us the Company has stood guarantee, or provided security to any other entity as below:
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Asianet Digital Network Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Continued)

(b)

(iv)

V)

(vi)

(vi) (a)

(b)

Particulars Guarantees Security

Aggregate amount during the year

. . 3,075.45 3,075.45
— Holding company

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet
date 1,967.78 1,967.78

— Holding company*

*As per the Companies Act, 2013

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, in our opinion, guarantees provided and security given during the year are,
prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, in respect of guarantees and security given by the Company, in our
opinion the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") have been
complied with.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts maintained by the Company pursuant to the
rules prescribed by the Central Government for maintenance of cost records under Section
148(1) of the Act in respect of cost of operation, cost of sales and margin of all services and
products and are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been
made and maintained. However, we have not carried out a detailed examination of the records
with a view to determine whether these are accurate or complete.

The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and
Value added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been
subsumed into GST.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other statutory
dues have been regularly deposited by the Company with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service
Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or
other statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2022 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no statutory dues relating to Goods and Service Tax,
Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other
statutory dues, which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Asianet Digital Network Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Continued)
any dispute.
(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination

(ix) (a)
(b)
()
(d)
(e)
®

) (a)
(b)

(xi) (a)
(b)

(©
(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv) (@)

\

of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and
borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet of the Company, we report that the Company has not used funds raised on short-
term basis for long-term purposes except Rs. 32.24 millions. Further, the funds raised on short-
term basis during the year, prima facie, have not been utilised for long term purpose.

The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures (as
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2022. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies (as defined under the Act).

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has
been noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions
with related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable,
and the details of the related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements
as required by the applicable accounting standards.

Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion,
the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Asianet Digital Network Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Continued)

(b)

(xv)

(xvi) (a)

(b)

©

(d)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

()

(b)

We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period
under audit.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-|A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not part of any group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended). Accordingly, the requirements of clause
3(xvi)(d) are not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding
financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting
its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to
the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up
to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged
by the Company as and when they fall due.

The requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 135 are not applicable to the
Company. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent
amount under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act pursuant to any ongoing project.
Accordingly, clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

For B S R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’'s Registration No.:116231W/W-100024

Baby Paul
Partner

Place: Kochi Membership No.: 218255
Date: 22 August 2022 ICAI UDIN:22218255APOXEL9026
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of Asianet Digital Network Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(f} under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Asianet Digital
Network Private Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at
31 March 2022, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”).

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company'’s internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of Asianet Digital Network Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Continued)

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForB S R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:116231W/W-100024

Baby Paul

Partner

Place: Kochi Membership No.: 218255
Date: 22 August 2022 ICAI UDIN:22218255APOXEL9026
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Asianet Digital Network Private Limited
Standslone balance sheet as at 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in millions)

Notes As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 : 1,283.70 1,299.68
Capital work-in-progress 4 99.57 81,02
Right-of-use assets 36 28.56 18.06
Intangible assets 5 5.47 731
Financial assets
Other financial assets 13 38.62 2.92
Deferred tax assets (net) 29 177.10 148,21
Income tax assets (net) 29 43.27 11.95
Other non-current assets 7 - 154.20
Total non-current assets 1,676.29 1,723.35
Current assets
Inventories ] 6.64 7.84
Financial assets
Investments 9 492.60 621.02
Trade receivables 10 31292 348.59
Cash and cash equivalents 11 18.46 19.75
Other bank balances 12 18.05 16.71
Loans 6 3.24 322
Other financial assets 13 11.99 11.04
Other current assets 7 84.15 115.83
Total current assets 948.05 1,144.00
Total assets 2,624.34 2,867.35
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 14 801.16 801.16
Other equity 162.61 148,11
Total equity 963,77 949.27
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilites
Borrowings 15 221.64 283.35
Lease liabilities 36 24.05 16.29
Other financial liabilities 16 60.80 62.16
Provisions 17 9575 96.50
Other non-current liabilities it} 37.04 5.08
Total non-current liabilities 439.28 463.38
Current linbilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 15 293.41 197.11
Lease liabilities 36 6,59 M)
Trade payables 19
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 18.70 19.42
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 514.97 808.30
Other financial liabilities 16 40.15 2997
Provisions 17 12.94 8.48
Other current liabilities 18 334.53 387.71
Total current liabilities 1,221.29 1,454,70
Total liabilities 1,660.57 1,918.08
Total equity and liabilities 2‘624.34 2,867.35
Significant accounting policies 3
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these standalone financial statements -
As per our report of even date attached
Jor B SR & Associates LLP Jfor and on behalf of the}Board of Directors of (
Chartergd Accountants Asianet Digital Nejwork Private Limited -
Firm r;qulrnlbon unber: 116231W /W-100024 CIN (LI74999K 124 \Q\J\ﬂ;\\
NN

Baby Paul Suresh Paz allil Sivarnman Nair Sreerama Murthy Chaganti
Parmer Whole Time, Director

Membership number: 218255 DIN: 08421313 DIN: 09379784

Koachi Thiruvananthapuram Thiruvananthapuram

22 August 2022 22 August 2022 22 August 2022
Joby

Compan! Secretary
Membership no: A 24411
Thiruvananthepuram

22 August 2022




Asianet Digital Network Private Limited
Standalone statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in millions)

Notes Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Income
Revenue from operations 20 3,139.13 3,031.43
Other income 21 31.99 4563
Total income 3,171.12 3,077.06
Expenses
Network, transmission and related expenses 22 1,445.60 1,376.35
Purchases of stock-in-trade 23 50.67 23.65
Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade 24 120 231
Employee benefits expense 25 25544 286.61
Impairment losses on financial and contract assets 34C 53.91 13.38
Finance costs 26 58.00 56.13
Depreciation and amortisation expense 27 347.90 340.91
Other expenses 28 953.20 919.19
Total expenses 3,165.92 3,018.53
Profit before tax 5.20 58.53
Tax expense 29
Current tax 28.54 2928
Deferred tax credit (31.14) (31.18)
Total tax expense (2.60) (1.91)
Profit (or the year 7.80 60.44
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Remeasurement of net defined benefit plan income 8.95 1799
Income tax credit relating to the above (2.25) (4.41)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax 6.70 13.59
Total comprehensive income for the year 14,50 74.03
Earning per equity share (Equity share of face value Rs. 10 each) 31 0.10 0.75
Basic and diluted eamings per share (Rs.)
Significant accounting policies 3
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these standalone financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
for BS R & Associates LLP Jforand on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Charteredgdccountants Asianet Digital Network Private Limited
Firm regffration number: 116231W /W-100024 ! \Q\(\
Baby Paul Srecrama Murthy Chaganti
Partner Director
Membership number: 218255 DIN: 08421313 DIN: 09379784
Kochi Thiruvananthapuram Thiruvananthapuram
22 August 2022 22 August 2022 22 August 2022

Membership no: A 24411

Thiruvananthapuram
22 August 2022




Asianet Digital Network Private Limited
Standalone statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in millions)

Cash Nows (rom operating activities

Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

Profit before tax 5.20 58.53
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 347.90 34091
Net gain on fair value changes on financial assets measured at FVTPL (19.10) (29.26)
Finance costs 58.00 56.13
Interest income under the effective interest method (1.15) (1.09)
Financial guarantee income (10.17) 9.06)
Impairment losses on financial and contract assets 53.91 13.38
Unrealised foreign exchange loss/(gain) 0.19 393
Operating profit before working capital changes 434.78 433.47
Decrease in inventories 1.20 231
Increase in trade receivables (18.24) 22495
Increase in financial assets and other assets (6.40) (96.98)
Increase/ (decrease) in financial liabilities and other liabilities (307.51) 11.23
Net cash generated from/ (used in) operating activities belore taxes 103.83 574.97
Income tax paid, net (59.86) (14.97)
Net cash generated from /(used in) operating activities (A} 43.97 560.00
Cash Mow from investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (174.75) (367.35)
Investments in mutual funds (689.76) (980 00)
Proceeds from sale of mutual fund investments 837.27 791.88
Interest received 11,39 10.04
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (15.85) (545.43)
Cash NNow from financing activities
Long term secured loans availed 260.00 300.00
Long term secured loans repaid (322.08) (142.16)
Current borrowings availed, net 96.30 (128.69)
Payment of lease liabilities (7.58) (6.59)
Finance costs (56.05) (54.82)
Net cash generated from financing activities (C) (29.41) (32.28)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (1.29) (17.68)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 19.75 37.43
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 18.46 19.75
Refer to note 11 - cash and cash equivalents
Reconciliation of financinl liabilities farming part of financing activities in accordance with Ind AS 7:
Particulars Asat Cash flows Non cash ch As at
1 April 2021 Fair value Others* 31 March 2022
Non-current borrowings (including current maturities) 283.35 (62.08) - 037 221.64
Current borrowings 197.11 96,30 - - 293.41
Lease liabilities 19,99 {7.58) - 18.23 30,64
Total 500.45 26.64 - 18.60 545.69
Particulars As at Cash flows Non cash changes As at
1 April 2020 Fair value Others* 31 March 2021
Non-current borrowings 121.46 157.84 - 4.05 283.35
Current borrowings 325.80 (128.69) - - 197.11
Lease liabilities 24.05 (6.59) - 253 19.99
Total 471.31 22.56 - 6,58 500.45

*Others includes finance cost accrued Rs. 2.01 million (31 March 2021: Rs. 1.96 million)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

for BS R & Associates LLP
Chartergd Acconntants
stration number: 116231W /W-100024

Baby Paul
Partner
Membership number: 218255

Kochi
22 August 2022

Sfor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
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Asianet Digital Network Private Limited

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in millions)

A Equity Share Capital

Note Amount
Balance as at 1 April 2020 801.16
Changes in equity share capital during 2020-21 14 -
As at 31 March 2021 801.16
Balance as at 1 April 2021 801.16
Changes in equity share capital during 2021-22 14 -
As at 31 March 2022 801.16

B Other equity

Particulars Reserves and Items of other Total other equity attributable to

surplus comprehensive income equity holders of the Company

Retained earnings Remensurement of net
defined benefit liability/
(nsset), net of tax

Balance as at 01 April 2020 74.08 - 74.08
Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year 60,44 60.44
Other comprehensive income for the year - 13.59 13.59
Total comprehensive incame 60.44 13.59 74.03
Transferred to retained eamings 13,59 (13.59) -
Balance as at 31 March 2021 148,11 - 148.11
Balance as at 01 April 2021 148.11 - 148.11
Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year 7.80 7.80
Other comprehensive income for the year - 6.70 6.70
Total comprehensive income 7.80 6.70 14.50
Transferred to retained eamings 6.70 (6.70) -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 162.61 - 162.61

The description of the nature and purpose of each reserve within equity is as follows:

Retained earnings

This represents the profits / losses of the company earned till date, net of appropriations.

Other comprehensive income

Other comprehensive income (OCI) comprises of actuarial gains and losses that are recognised in other comprehensive income.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these st

As per our report of even date attached

Jor BS R & Associates LLP

Chartergd Accountants
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Asianet Digital Network Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
(All amounts in Indian rupee millions)

1.

Company overview

Asianet Digital Network Private Limited (‘'Asianet' or 'Company) is a private limited company incorporated
on 30 October 2015 as a wholly owned subsidiary of Asianet Satellite Communications Private Limited
{(Holding and Ultimate Holding Company").

The Company provides cable and satellite channels over a high quality state-of-art cable network to its
subscribers. Asianet has a unique business model with end-to-end ownership of the network including the last
mile.

Asianet has commenced its operations on 1 March 2018 through a Business Transfer agreement with Holding
company dated 25 March 2017, wherein the cable TV Business has been transferred to Asianet via slump sale
after the closure of business hours on 28 February 2018.

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS 1 - Presentation of financial
statements as notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards).

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on
22 August 2022.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.), which is also the Company’s functional
currency. All amounts are presented in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:

Items Measurement basis

Certain financial assets Fair value

Net defined benefit liability Fair value of plan asset less present value of defined
benefit obligations

Use of estimates and judgements

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised prospectively.

Judgements
There are no judgements made by the Company that have significant effects on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements.

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties
Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a
material adjustment in the year ended 31 March 2022 is included in the following notes:

- Note 4 and 5 - Measurement of useful life and residual value of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets;

- Note 32 - Measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions;

- Note 29 - Recognition of deferred tax asset:




Asianet Digital Network Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
(All amounts in Indian rupee millions)

2.
D.

Basis of preparation (continued)

Use of estimates and judgements (continued)

- Note 30- Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the
likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources;
- Note 34 - Impairment of financial assets;

Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for
both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. The Company has an established control framework
with respect to the measurement of fair values. Significant valuation issues are reported to the Company’s
Board of directors.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the
valuation techniques as follows:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as
possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the
fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair
value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the following notes:

- Financial instruments

Significant accounting policies

Property, plant and equipment

i. Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs, less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and
non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of
bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and
removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and direct
labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its intended use, and
estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Capital work-in-progress comprises of the cost of fixed assets that are not yet ready for their intended use as
at the balance sheet date. '




Asianet Digital Network Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
(All amounts in Indian rupee millions)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
3.1 Property, Plants and equipment (continued)

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment, outstanding at each balance sheet
date are shown under other non-current assets. The cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for its
intended use at each balance sheet date are disclosed as capital work-in-progress.

ii. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with
the expenditure will flow to the Company.

iii. Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment are provided on the straight-line method over the useful lives
of the assets estimated by the Management. Depreciation for assets purchased / sold during a period is
proportionately charged. The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current
and comparative periods are as follows:

Class of assets Useful life
Plant and equipment* 6-18
Office equipments 5
Computers 3
Servers 6
Furniture and fixtures 10
Electrical fittings 10

* For the above mentioned classes of assets, the Company believes that the useful lives as given above best
represent the useful lives of these assets based on internal assessment and supported by technical advice,
where necessary, which is different from the useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of the
Companies Act, 2013,

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial yearend and adjusted if
appropriate.

3.2 Intangible Assets
Amortisation

Intangibles assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment. Intangible assets are
amortised over their respective individual estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis, commencing from
the date the asset is available to the Company for its use and is included in depreciation and amortisation in
statement of profit or loss.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Class of assets Years
Software 4
Copyrights and trademarks 3-5

The estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible asset is based on a number of factors including the
effects of obsolescence, demand, competition and other economic factors (such as the stability of the industry
and known technological advances) and the level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain the expected
future cash flows from the asset.
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Asianet Digital Network Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
(All amounts in Indian rupee millions)

3.
3.2

3.3

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Intangible Assets (continued)

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the
specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognised in statement of profit or loss as incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories comprises
purchase price, and other cost incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. The
Company uses the weighted average method to determine the cost of inventory consisting of tele-shopping
products and television sets.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The comparison of cost and net realisable
values is made on an item-by-item basis.

3.4 Impairment

i,

il

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets measured at amortised
cost.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit
impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit
losses. Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial instrument.

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum
contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet:

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount
of the assets.

Write-off:

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there
is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the debtor
does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts
subject to the write off.

Impairment of non- financial assets

The Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.




Asianet Digital Network Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (confinued)
(All amounts in Indian rupee millions)

3.5

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into cash-
generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows that
are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs. The recoverable amount of a CGU (or
an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is based
on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU (or the asset).

Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of
impairment testing, the recoverable amount i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-
use is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely
independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to
which the asset belongs.

If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized in the statement of profit and
loss is measured by the amount by which the carrying value of the assets exceeds the estimated recoverable
amount of the asset.

An impairment loss is reversed in the statement of profit and loss if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount. The carrying amount of the asset is increased to its revised
recoverable amount, provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any accumulated amortization or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognized for
the asset in prior years.

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are classified as
short-term employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, bonus and ex-gratia. Short-term
employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is
provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid e.g., under short-term cash bonus, if the
Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided
by the employee and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

Post-employment benefits
Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. The Company
makes specified monthly contributions towards Government administered provident fund scheme.
Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an employee benefit expense in
statement of profit or loss in the periods during which the related services are rendered by employees.

Defined Benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The
Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future
benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods and discounting that amount.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected
unit credit method.




Asianet Digital Network Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (confinued)
(All amounts in Indian rupee millions)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI). The Company determines the net interest expense on the
net defined benefit liability for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit
obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability, taking into account
any changes in the net defined benefit liability during the period as a result of contributions and benefit
payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in statement
of profit or loss.

Other long term employee benefits- Compensated absences

The Company’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits other than post-employment benefits
is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior
periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any related assets is
deducted. The obligation is measured on the basis of an annual independent actuarial valuation using the
projected unit credit method. Remeasurement gains or losses are recognised in other comprehensive income
in the period in which they arise.

3.6 Provisions (other than employee benefits)

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows
(representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet
date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost. Expected future
operating losses are not provided for. A contract is considered to be onerous when the expected economic
benefits to be derived by the Company from the contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its
obligations under the contract. The provision for an onerous contract is measured at the present value of the
lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the
contract. Before such a provision is made, the Company recognises any impairment loss on the assets
associated with that contract.

3.7 Revenue
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Revenue from contract with customers

The Company generates revenue from rendering of cable television service, cable channel service, sale of
tele-shopping products and television sets and other related activities. Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contracts
with Customers, establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when
revenue is recognised. Under Ind AS 115, revenue is recognised when a customer obtains control of the
goods or services.

Disaggregation of revenue

The Company disaggregates revenue from cable television service, cable channel service , sale of tele-
shopping products and television sets and other operating income. The Company believes that this
disaggregation best depicts how the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of Company’s revenues and cash
flows are affected by industry, market and other economic factors.

Contract balances

The Company classifies the right to consideration in exchange for sale of services as trade receivables and
advance consideration as advance from customers.
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Asianet Digital Network Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
(All amounts in Indian rupee millions)

a)

b)

c)
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue (continued)
Performance obligations and revenue recognition policies

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer, The Company
recognises revenue when it transfers control over a good or service to a customer. The following details
provide information about the nature and timing of the satisfaction of performance obligations in contracts
with customers, including significant payment terms, and the related revenue recognition policies.

Cable television and channel services

Revenue from cable television and channel services are recognised as revenue when the related services are
rendered unless significant future uncertainties exist. Revenue is also recognised in relation to the services
rendered to the customers to whom the services are rendered on the balance sheet date to the extent of the
services rendered. Revenue is recognised net of discounts and concessions.

Sale of products

Revenue from sale of tele-shopping items and television sets is recognised when the control in the goods are
transferred to the customer and no significant uncertainty exists regarding the amount of the consideration
that will be derived from the sale of the goods and regarding its collection. The amount of revenue
recognised is net of sales retuns, taxes and duties, wherever applicable.

Other operating income

The Company’s revenue from other operating income comprises primarily of income from expense sharing
agreements and scrap sales and is recognised as per the agreement terms.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency of the Company at the exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions or an average rate if the average rate approximates the actual rate at the
date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at
the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Exchange differences are recognised
in statement of profit or loss.

Leases

a)Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease

At inception of an arrangement, it is determined whether the arrangement is or contains a lease. At inception
or on reassessment of the arrangement that contains a lease, the payments and other consideration required by
such an arrangement are separated into those for the lease and those for other elements on the basis of their
relative fair values.

The Company accounts for each lease component within the contract as a lease separately from non-lease
components of the contract and allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the
basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-
lease components.
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Asianet Digital Network Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
(All amounts in Indian rupee millions)

3.10

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)

b)Measurement of leases as a lessee

The Company recognises right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term
at the lease commencement date. The cost of the right-of-use asset measured at inception shall comprise of the
amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of
costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset or restoring the underlying
asset or site on which it is located. The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any
accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the
lease liability. The right-of-use assets is depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement
date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use
assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. Right-of-use assets are
tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses
incremental borrowing rate. The lease payments shall include fixed payments, variable lease payments,
residual value guarantees, exercise price of a purchase option where the Company is reasonably certain to
exercise that option and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee
exercising an option to terminate the lease. The lease liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payments made and remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to
reflect revised in-substance fixed lease payments. The company recognises the amount of the re-measurement
of lease liability due to modification as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset and statement of profit and loss
depending upon the nature of modification. Where the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to
zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Company recognises any
remaining amount of the re-measurement in statement of profit and loss.

The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116, Leases, to short-term leases of all
assets that have a lease term of 12 months or less. The lease payments associated with these leases are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Recognition of dividend income, interest income or interest expense

Dividend income is recognised in statement of profit or loss on the date on which the right to receive payment
is established.

Interest on deployment of surplus funds is recognized using the time proportionate method, based on the
transactional interest rates.

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or the
amortised cost of the financial liability.

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount
of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability.
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3.11

3.12

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in statement of profit or loss except to the
extent that it relates to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

i. Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and
any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. Minimum Alternative Tax
('MAT") under the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961 is recognised as current tax in the statement of
profit or loss. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or
received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and
tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or
simultaneously.

ii. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.
Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can
be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be available.
Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent
that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable
profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets —
unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the extent that
it is probable/ no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or
the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.
The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable
entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or
their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to foreign currency
borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred in connection with
the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.
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3.
3.13

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments

i. Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other
financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value
through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

ii. Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at either at amortised cost, FVTPL or fair
value in other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the

Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not

designated as at FVTPL:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect
to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI (designated as FVOCI — equity
investment). This election is made on an investment by investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at
FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably
designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at
FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would
otherwise arise.

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at
investment level because this best reflects the way the business is managed, and information is provided to
management. The information considered includes:

- the stated policies and objectives for each of such investments and the operation of those policies in
practice. These include whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income,
maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of
any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and how those risks are managed;

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and
expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not
considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company’s continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis are measured at FVTPL.
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3.13

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending
risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains
a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not
meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;

- prepayment and extension features; and

- terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features)

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at FVTPL | These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses,
including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in statement of profit
or loss.

Financial assets at | These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
amortised cost interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses, Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in
profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in statement of
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified
as FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial
recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any
interest expense, are recognised in statement of profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in statement
of profit or loss.

i. Derecognition
Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the
Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not
retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet but retains
either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not
derecognised.
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3.13

3.14

3.15

3.16

3.17

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued
Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled
or expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the
modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is
recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished
and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in statement of profit or loss.

ii. Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when,
and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends
either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Earnings / (loss) per share

The basic earnings / (loss) per share (‘EPS’) is computed by dividing the net profit / (loss) after tax for the
year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the year.

The number of equity shares in computing the diluted earnings per share comprise the weighted average
number of shares considered for deriving basic eamnings per share and also the weighted average number of
equity shares that could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive
potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period unless issued at a later date. In
computing dilutive earnings per share, only potential equity shares that are dilutive, i.e. which reduces
earnings per share or increases loss per share are included.

Cash-flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments.
The cash flows from regular revenue generating, investing and financing activities of the Company are
segregated.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Reverse factoring arrangements

The Company has entered into reverse factoring arrangements for factoring its trade payables. The fee
payable under reverse factoring arrangements have been grouped under finance costs in the statement of
profit and loss, as cash flows from financing activities in the statement of cash flows and the balance payable
under factoring arrangement has been grouped under trade payable in the Balance sheet.
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3.

3.18

3.19

3.20

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Operating segments

Basis for segmentation

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may
earn revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Company’s other components and for
which discrete financial information is available. All operating segments’ operating results are reviewed
regularly by the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) to make decisions about resources to be allocated
to the segments and assess their performance. The Company has two reportable segments. The accounting
principles consistently used in the preparation of the financial statements are also consistently applied to
record income and expenditure in individual segments.

Operating cycle

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash
and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On 23 March 2022, MCA
amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable from 1 April
2022, as below:

i) Ind AS 16 — Property, plant and equipment
The amendment clarifies that excess of net sale proceeds of items produced over the cost of testing, if any,
shall not be recognised in the profit or loss but deducted from the directly attributable costs considered as
part of cost of an item of property, plant and equipment. The Company has evaluated the amendment and
there is no impact on its financial statements.

ii) Ind AS 37 — Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

The amendment specifies that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to
the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract
(examples would be direct labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling
contracts (an example would be the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and
equipment used in fulfilling the contract). The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no
material impact on its financial statements.
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Asianet Digital Network Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in millions)

5 Intangible assets

Particulars Computer software Copyrights and Total
operating rights

Reconciliation of carrying amount

Gross carrying value

Balance as at 1 April 2020 1.57 6.09 7.66
Additions 3.29 2.14 542
Disposal - . »
Balance as at 31 March 2021 4.86 8.22 13.08
Balance as at 1 April 2021 4.86 8.22 13.08
Additions - 0.81 0.81
_Disposals - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 4.86 9.03 13.89

Accumulated amortisation

Balance as at 1 April 2020 0.26 2.96 3.22
Amortisation expense 1.10 145 2.54
Disposals - - =
Balance as at 31 March 2021 1,36 4.41 5.76
Balance as at 1 April 2021 1.36 4.41 5,77
Amortisation expense 1.21 144 2.65
Disposals - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 2.57 5.85 8.42
Carrying amounts (net)

As at 31 March 2022 2.29 3.18 5.47

As at 31 March 2021 3.50 3.82 7.31
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6 Loans

Current
Unsecured, considered good
Loans and advances to employees

As at
31 March 2022

324

As at
31 March 2021

3.22

3.24

3.22

*The Company does not have any loans and advances due by directors or other officers of the company or any of them either severally or jointly with any other persons or amounts
due by firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner or a director or a member

-3

Other assets

Non-current
Unsecured, considered good

Advances for capital goods* - 154.20
- 154.20
*includes advance for capital goods from holding company amounting to Nil as at 31 March 2022 (Rs 130 million as at 31 March 2021)
Current
Unsectired, considered good
Prepaid expenses 752 438
Balance with government authorities 30.66 2862
Advance for supply of goods and services** 4597 82.83
84.15 115.83
84.15 270,02
8 Inventories
Valued at lower of cost and realisable value
Stock-in-trade 6.64 7.84
6.64 7.84
9 Investments
Investment in mutual funds measured at fair value through profit or loss
Ungtioted
Investments in liquid mutual funds 492,60 621.02
492.60 621.02
Aggregate book value of unquoted investments 492.60 621.02
Aggregate book value of quoted investments - -
10 Trade receivables
Current
Unsecured
Considered good 312,92 34859
Credit impaired 322.56 286.74
635.48 635.33
Allowances for expected credit loss (322.56) (286.74)
(322.56) (286.74)
Net trade receivables 312.92 348.59
For details of trade receivables pledged, refer note 15
The Company's exposure to credit and currency risks and loss allowances related to trade receivable are disclosed in note 34
Trade receivables ageing schedule
As at 31 March 2022
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Not due Less than6 6 months - 1 1-2years 2-3years More than 3 years Total
months year
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 4412 239.60 10.40 2.41 - - 296.53
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired 4332 118.56 1181 7.87 82,54 3234 296.44
(iti) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - - - 26.12 - 26.12
(iv) Unbilled dues 16.40 - - - - - 16.40
Less: allowances for expected credit loss . 322.56
103,84 358.16 22.21 10.27 108.66 3234 312,92
As it 31 March 2021
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Not due Less than 6 6 months - 1 1-2years 2-3years More than 3 years Total
months Year
(1) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 14.38 192.22 47.04 40,68 - - 29432
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - 28,13 4583 93,82 61.91 30.93 260.62
(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - 26,12 - - 26.12
(iv) Unbilled dues 54,28 - - - - - 5428
Less: allowances for expected credit loss 286.74
68.66 220.35 92.87 160.61 61.91 30.93 348.59
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As at
31 March 2022

11 Cash and cash equivalents

As at
31 March 2021

Balance with banks 13.35 16.20
Cash on hand 5.11 3.55
18.46 19,75
12 Other bank balances
Balance in banks for margin money 18.05 16.71
18,05 16.71
13 Other financial assets
Non current
Unsecured, considered good
Rent and other deposits 38.62 292
38.62 2.92
Current
Unsecured, considered good
Rent and other deposits 1195 10.93
Interest accrued on fixed deposits with banks 0.04 011
11.99 11,04

For details of other financial assets pledged, refer note 15
The Company's exposure to credit and currency risks and loss allowances related to other financial assets are disclosed in note 34
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14 Equity share capital

a)

b)

¢}

d)

Particulars As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Number of Amount Number of Amount
shares shares
Authorised
Equity shares of Rs, 10 each 80,250,000 802,50 80,250,000 802,50
Total 80,250,000 802.50 80,250,000 802.50
Issued, subscribed and paid-up
Equity shares of Rs, 10 each 80,115,834 801.16 80,115,834 801.16
Tatal 80,115,834 801.16 80,115,834 801.16
Reconciliation of the number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:
Particulars As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Number of Amount Number of Amount
shares shares

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up
At the beginning of the reporting period 80,115,834 801.16 80,115,834 801.16
Shares issued for cash -

Abthe end of the reporting period 80,115,834 80116 ___ 80,115,834 801.16

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The Company has a single class of equity shares All the equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share in the Company's residual assets. The equity shares ere
entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time. The voting rights of an equity shareholder on a poll (not on show of hands) are in proportion to share of paid-up equity
capital of the Company. Voting rights cannot be exercised in respect of shares on which any call or other sums presently payable have not been paid Failure to pay any amount
called up on the shares may lead to the forfeiture of shares. On winding up of the Company, the holders of the equity shares will be entitled to receive the residual assets of the
Compeny, remaining after the distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to the number of equity shares held.

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Name of the shareholder As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Number of % Number of %
shares shares

Asianet Satellite Communications Limited (Holding and Ultimate Holding Company)
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 80,115,834 100% 80,115,834 100%

Details of buyback, bonus shares, issue for consideration other than for cash for past 5 years

The Company has not allotted any fully paid-up equity shares by way of bonus shares nor has bought back any class of equity shares nor has there been any issue for consideration
other then for cash during the period of five years immediately preceding the balance sheet date.
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15 Borrowings

Non-current

Secured

Term loans from banks

Less: Current maturities of long-term borrowings

Current

Secured

Cash credit and overdraft facilities from banks
Current maturities of long-term borrowings*

* The details of interes rates, repayment and other terms are disclosed in note 15

Information aboul the Company's exposure to interest rate and liquidity risks are included in note 34

(i) Dretnils of securities, terms and conditions

n borrowings fram banks and others

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

462.64 411.29
(241.00) (127.94)
221.64 283,35
5241 6918
241.00 127.94
293.41 197.11
515,05 480.47

—

Type OI: Lender name |Tenure Security and maturity terms Repayment schedule and interest rates | Quistandinghalanceason: |
borrowings 31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021
First Pari passu charge on entire fixed assets of
ADNPL  Second pari passu cherge on entire
current assets of ADNPL. Paripassu charge over
the following properties, 36.87 cents of land and
commercial building at Door no 44/3323 Pallinada,
Vytilla Kochi in the name of Asianet Satellite
Communications Ltd. 17 cents of land and
commercial building at Kadappakadda, Kollam in
o B ek o ST oy st
Axis Bank 48 Months . N 8(Months of Moratorum). ROIL: 1 Yr MCLR 111.26 250.00
INR at Thuruthy PO, Kottayam in the name of Asianet
. - (8.50%) + 1,05%
Satellite Communications Ltd, 50 cents of land and
commercial building at Door no 17/2703, Near
Devagiri Medical Collge Calicut, in the name of]
Asianet Satellite Communications Ltd. 20 cents of]
land and commercial building at Edapazhinji,
Trivandrum in the name of Asianet Satellite
Communications Ltd. Corporate Guarantee of]|
ASCL
Term Loan - First Pari passu charge on fixed assets of ADNPL, |43 equal monthly installments (After 5 53 58 85.63
EURO Second Pari passu charge on current assets of{ Months of Moratorium). ROI: 3.40% )
Term Loan = ADNPL. First Paripassu charge on fixed assets of|43 equal monthly installments (After 5
INR Federal Bank |48 Months ASCL. Second Paripessu charge on current assets| Months of Moratorium). 50.00 78.57
of ASCL. Corporate Guarantee of ASCL ROI: 1 Yr MCLR + 0.20%
Term Loan - 43 equal monthly installments (After 5 8058 y
INR Months of Moratorium). ROI: 8.25% .
First paripassu charge on movable and immovable
fixed assets of ADNPL. Second Paripassu charge
by way of hypothecation on all the current assets
Term Loen - of ADNPL. First parispassu charge on movable|Lumpsum Repayment
INR fCICI Bark |36 Manths and immovable fixed zssets of ASCL. Second|ROI: 1Y MCLR + 0.50% 164,00 :
Paripassu charge by way of hypothecation on all
the current assets of ASCL Corporate Guarantee
of ASCL
First Paripassu charge on the current assets of]
Overdraft - ADNPL. First Paripassu charge on the current 7.99 42,10
. . |Lumpsum Repayment
Fund Based Federal Bank |Yearly renewal|assets of ASCL. Second paripassu charge on entire ROI: 1 Yr MCLR + 0.20%
Facility fixed assets of ADNPL and ASCL. Corporate ’ ’ 323 .
Guarantee of ASCL
Overdraft - Pari passu charge on current assets of ADNPL, Lumpsum Repayment
Fund Based HDFC Bank | Yearly renewal|Paripassu charge on flxed assets of ASCL. ROL: 1 Yr MCLR + 0'80"/ 2.28 21.50
- : .80%
Facility Corporate Guarantee of ASCL
First Paripassu charge by way of hypothecation on
all the current assets of ADNPL. Second
Overdraft - parispassu charge on mfyvable .and immovable
Fund Based ICICI Bank | Yearly renewal fixed assets of ADNPL. First Paripassu charge by|Lumpsum Repayment o )
Facility way of hypothecation on all the current assets of| ROI: 6 M MCLR + 0.80%
ASCL. Second parispassu charge on moveble and
immoveble fixed assets of ASCL Corporate
Guarantee of ASCL.
Letter ofCredit-l Pari passu charge on current assets of ADNPL.
Non- Fund HDFC Bank |Yearly renewal|Paripassu charge on fixed assets of ASCL.|Unfunded borrowing 4.00 7.57
Based Facility Corporate Guarantee of ASCL
/o, PSSog
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Asianet Digital Network Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in millions)

1S Borrowings (continued)

The Company has availed working capital facilities from banks on the basis of security of current assets and have submitted quarterly returns of current assets to the bankers. Following is the
summary of reconciliation and reasons for differences between such returns and books of account:

Quarter ended Name of the Particulars of security provided Amount as per statement to( Amount as per Difference if any Reason for discrepancies if any
bank bank books
Trade Receivables 589.20 589.20 -
30 June Federal Bank, :
2021 HDFC Bank Inventory and CWIP 52.50 105.08 (52.58)
Trade Payables 16.10 16.10 -
Trade Receivabl 623.40 654.40 (31.00)
30 S b F =
Lo ]emem er ;;:I)e:(a:l g:::: I ¥ and CWIP 3720 78.49 (41.29) Refer note below
Trade Payables 163,50 594.04 (430.54)
31 December | Federal Bank, Trade Rcuwnb]es 628.60 612.46 16.14
2021 HDFC Bank Inventory and CWIP 5030 99.84 {49.54)
Trade Payables 158 .50 521.76 (363 .26)

Reasons for discrepancies: Post closure entries including reclassifications, accruals and provisions considered based on the actuals identified subsequently, etc were considered in the books of
accounts on & later date Effect of these entries were not considered in the statements presented to the Bankers.

Periodic statements were not submitted for the quarter ended 31 March 2022 since the same was not required by the bankers owing to a conversion of working capital loans from Cash Credit
facilities to Overdraft Facilities during the quarter ended 31 March 2022

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
16 Other financial liabilities
Non-current

Trade / security deposits received 60.80 62.16
60.80 62.16

Current
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 0.09 015
Accrued salaries and benefits 23.01 26.30
Dues to creditors for capital goods 17.05 3.51
40.15 29.97
100,95 92.12

17 Provisions
Non-current
Provision for employee benefits

Net defined benefit liability - Gratuity 8577 86.93

Compensated absences 9.98 9.57
95,75 96,50

Current

Provision for employee benefits

Net defined benefit liability - Gratuity 8.60 3.63

Compensated absences 4.34 4.85
12.94 8.48

108i69 ]04.&

The Holding company's gratuity fund covers the employees of the Company and no separate gratuity fund for the Company
18 Other liabilities
Non-current

Unearned income 37.04 5.08
37.04 5.08

Current
Unearned income 93.08 131.83
Statutory dues payable 3134 27.08
Advances from customers 210.11 228.80
334.53 387,71
371.37 392,78




Asianet Digital Network Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in millions)

19 Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises
Total outstariding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

18.70 19.42
514.97 808.30
533.67 827.72

The trade payables include Rs. 59.47 million (31 March 2021: Rs. 93,74 million) pertaining to a factoring arrangement and the gross cash payments under the agreement is Rs. 398 97 miillion

(31 March 2021: Rs. 267.86 million) during the year ended 31 March 2022

All rade payables are 'current’

The Company's exposure to currency and liquidity risks related to trade payables is disclosed in note 34

Disclosures as required under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (“the Act") based on the information available with the Company are given below:

: Asat As at
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
(i) Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the reporting period 18.69 1927
(ii) Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the reporting period 0.01 0.15
(iif) The amount of interest paid along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day 015 -
(iv) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day 0.01 0.14
during the period) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act
(v) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the reporting period - -
(vi) The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding year, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid - -
to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23
Trade payables ageing schedule
As at 31 March 2022
Particulars Outstanding lor following periods from due date of payment

Not due Less than 1 year 1-2 vears 2-3 vears Mare than 3 years Total
i) MSME - 18.69 0.01 - - 18.70
ii) Others - 3B5.08 0.67 052 0.27 386.54
iii) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - .
iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - - -
v) Unbilled dues 128 43 - - - - 12843
128.43 403,77 0.68 0.52 .27 533.67
As at 31 March 2021
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Not due Less than 1 vear 1-2 years 2-3 vears More than 3 vears Total
i) MSME - 19.42 - - - 19.42
ii) Others - 686.84 0.54 0.36 0.17 68791
iii) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - -
iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - - -
v) Unbilled dues 120.39 - - - - 12039
120.39 706.26 0.54 0.36 0.17 827.72




Asianet Digital Network Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in millions)

20 Revenue from operations

Sale of services 3,050.13 2,961.99
Sale of products 56.15 30.69
Other operating revenues 32.85 3875
3,139.13 3,031.43
Sale of services comprises
Cable television services 2,997.29 2,901.83
Cable channel services 52.84 60.16
3,050.13 2,961.99
Sale of product comprises :
Household equipments, kitchen utensils, electronic items etc 56.15 30,69
56.15 30.69
Other operating revenues comprises:
Support service income 31.81 38.17
Scrap sales 1.04 0.58
32.85 38.75
21 Other income
Interest income under the effective interest method on:
Fixed deposits with banks 076 089
Lease deposits 039 0.20
Interest on income tax refund 0,70 222
Financial guarantee income 1017 9.06
Net gain on fair value changes on financial assets measured at FVTPL 19,10 29.26
Insurance claims received - 3.58
Miscellaneous income 0.87 0.43
31.99 45.63
22 Network, tr ission and related exp "
Cable television services
Service charges to associates 214,13 228.04
Pay channel cost 1,160.53 1,051.96
Channel services
Programme production expenses 30.76 45.60
Agency commission 3.71 3.07
Other expenses 0.93 112
Trading
Packing and forwarding charges 2.19 1.08
Collection charges 031 -
Customer care expenses 30.20 4086
Consumption of stores, spares and consumables 2.84 4.63
1,445.60 1,376.35
*Network, tr ission and related exp includes Rs. 0.46 million for the year ended 31 March 2022 (Rs. 0.04 million for year ended 31 March 2021) pertaining to expense
allocation from holding Company
23 Purchases of stock-in-trade
Household equipments, kitchen utensils, electronic items etc 50.67 23.65
50.67 23.65
24 Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade
Opening stock 7.84 10.15
Closing stock 6.64 7.84
1.20 231
25 Employee benefits expense*
Salaries and allowances 199.04 209.80
Contributions to provident and other funds 32,66 50.55
Staff welfare expenses 23.74 26.26
255.44 286.61

Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

*Employee benefits expense includes Rs 6.10 million for the year ended 31 March 2022 (Rs. 36,08 million for year ended 31 March 2021) pertaining to expense allocation from holding

Company.

26 Finance costs
Interest on bank borrowings
Interest on intercompany borrowings
Interest on lease liabilities (refer note 36)
Net loss on account of foreign exchange fluctuations (classified as finance cost)
Other borrowing costs

4789 3750
: 5.40
2.01 196
(0.05) 2.86
8.15 8.40
58.00 56.13

*Finance costs includes Rs. 0.51 million for the year ended 31 March 2022 (Rs. 2.98 million for the year ended 31 March 2021) pertaining to expense allocation from holding Company




Asianet Digital Network Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in millions)

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

27 Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (refer note 4) 339.10 33275
Depreciation on right-oF-use assets (refer note 36) 6.15 5.62
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 5) 2.65 2.54
347.90 340.91
28 Other expenses*

Contract labour 297.06 279.59
Power and fuel 126.90 131.13
Rent 212,66 245,25
Repairs and maintenance - buildings 0.57 026
Repairs and maintenance - machinery 84,48 9241
Repairs and maintenance - others 15.69 19.18
Insurance 235 142
Rates and taxes 215 0.45
Communication 5.13 4.42
Travelling and conveyance 9.02 7.80
Printing and stationery 211 220
Bank charges and commission 13.44 1576
Advertising and marketing 41.14 21.70
Legal and professional 27.75 403
Payments to auditors (Refer note (i) below) 137 127
Office maintenance expenses 10.77 432
Corporate social responsibility expenses (Refer note (i) below) 1.06 0.62
Asset usage charges 96.57 86.16
Miscellaneous expenses 298 122
953.20 919.19

*Other expenses includes Rs. 313.67 million for the year ended 31 March 2022 (Rs, 301.93 million for the year ended 31 March 2021) pertaining to expense allocation from holding
Company

(i) Payments to the auditors include payments to statutory auditor (excluding reimbursement of expenses and taxes, where applicable) :
To statutory auditors:

Audit 137 127
Reimbursement of expenses - 0.04
137 1.27

Details of Corporale social responsibility expenditure
(i) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 1.06 053
(ii) Amount of expenditure incurred

- construction/ acquisition of any asset - =

- on purpose other than above 1.70 0.37
(iii) (Shortfall) / Excess at the end of the year 0.64 (0.16)
(iv) Total of previous years shortfall (0.24) (0.08)

(v) Reason for shortfall: For the year ending March 31, 2022: No shortfall; For the year ending March 31, 2021: The Company

was in the process of identifying prospective project as per schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013

{vi) Nature of CSR
a) Payment to Prime minister national relief fund - 062
b} Skill development = -
¢) Education N )
d) Rural development - -

e) Others 1.70 -
(vii) Details of related party transactions NA NA
(viii) Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by entering into a contractual obligation, the movements in the 0.40 0.24

provision during the year

Detnils of angoing project and other than angoing project

Opening balance Amount Amount spent during the year Closing balance
Particulars With Company In separate CSR | required to be | From Company's | From separate With Company In separnfe CSR
I Ale spent bank A/c CSR unspent Alc pent A/c
As at 31 March 2022 024 - 1.06 1.70 - (0.40) -

As at 31 March 2021 0.08 - 0.53 0.37 - 0.24 -




Asianet Digital Network Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in millions)

29 Income taxes

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

Income tax assets, net 4327 11.95
Net income tax assets at the end of the period/ year 43.27 11.95
n) Amount recognised in st of profit and loss
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Current tax 28.54 29.28
Deferred tax (credit)/ charge (31.14) (31.18)
Tox exp / (income) (2.60) (1.91)
Year ended 31 March 2022
Particulars Before tax Tax (expense) / benefit Net of tax
Remeasurement of the net defined plans 895 (2.25) 6.70
8.95 (2.25) 6.70
Year ended 31 March 2021
Particulars Before tax Tax (expense) / benefit Net of tax
Remeasurement of the net defined plans 17.99 (4.41) 13,59
17.99 (4.41) 13.59
() Reconcilintion of effective tax rate
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Profit before tax 5.20 58,53
Statutory income tax rate 25.17% 2517%
Tax using the Companys statutory tax rate 131 1473
Other permanent differences 0.27 0.24
Other temporary differences (4.18) -
Change in written down value* - (16.88)
Tax expense (2.60) (1.91)
Eflective tax rate (501,00)% (3.26)%
(d) Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities
(i) Deferred tux nssets and linbilities nre attributable to the following:
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021}
Deferred tax asset
Allowances for expected credit loss 81.18 72.17
| Provision for employee benefits 8.59 7.66
| Excess of depreciation on property, plant and equip t under Cc 88.79 7248
Lease linbilities, impact on account of Ind AS 116 0.52 0.49
Total deferred tax assets (A) 179.08 152.79
Deferred tax liability
Investments (1.53) (3.85)
Borrowings (0.45) (0.73)
Total deferred tax linbility (B) (1,98) {4.59)
Deferred tax nssets (net) 177.10 148.21

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities only if it has a legally enforceable right to set aff current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred

tax liabilities relating to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

(ii) Movement in temporary differences

Year ended 31 March 2022

Particulars Bal as at d in Profit Recognised in OCI Balances as at
1 April 2021 and loss during during 2021-22 31 March 2022
2021-22
Allowance for expected credit loss 72.17 9.02 - 81.18
Provision for emplovee benefits 7.66 318 {225) 8.59
Excess of depreciation on property, plant and equipment under 72.48 16.31 - 88.79
Lease liabilities, impact on account of Ind AS 116 0.49 0.04 - 0.52
Investments (3.85) 2.32 - (1.53)
Borrowings (0.73) 028 - (0.45)
Net deferred tnx nssets/ (linbilities) 148,21 .14 (2.25) 177,10
Year ended 31 March 2021
Particulars Bal as at gnised in Profit Recognised in OCI Balances as at
1 April 2020 and loss during during 2020-21 31 March 2021
2020-21
Allowance for expected credit loss 68.80 337 - 7217
Provision for emplovee benefits 9.26 2.80 (4.41) 7.66
Excess of depreciation on property, plant and equipment under 44.57 27.91 - 72.48
Lease liabilities, impact on account of Ind AS 116 024 0.24 - 049
Investments (0.92) (2.94) - (3.85)
Borrowings (0.53) (0.21) = 013}
Net deferred tax nssets/ (linbilities) 121.43 31.18 (4,41) 148,21
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
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30 Contingent liabilities and commitments

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Contingent liabilities
Corporate guarantees given by the Company (refer note (i) below) 1,967.78 1,545.74
1,967.78 1,545.74
Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of advances) and not provided for - -
(i) The Company has given corporate guarantees in respect of certain loans taken by the holding company,
(ii) The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses

31 Earnings per share (Basic and diluted)

The calculation of profit attributable to equity share holders and weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the purpose of basic earnings per share calculations are as

follows:

i) Net profit attributable to equity share holders

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Net profit for the reporting period, attributable to the equity share holders 7.80 60.44

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Opening balance (Refer note 14) 80,115,834 80,115,834

Equity shares issued during the year - -

Weighted average number of equity shares of Rs. 10 each for the year 80,115,834 80,115,834

Eamings per share, basic and diluted 0.10 0.75

The Company does not have potentially dilutive equity shares.

32 Employee benefits
The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 (‘Gratuity Act’). Under the Gratuity Act, employee who has completed five years of

service is entitled to specific benefit. The level of benefit provided depends on the employee’s length of service and salary at retirement/termination age, carried out by an

independent actuary Compensated absences, a defined benefit plan, is accrued based on an actuarial valuation at the balance sheet date, carried out by an independent actuary.

A Based on an actuarial valuation, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognised in the Company’s financial statements as at balance sheet

date:
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Defined benefit obligation liability 94.37 90.56
Plan assets - -
Net defined benefit liability 94.37 90.56
Compensated absences 14.32 14.42
Total employee benefit liability 108.69 104.98
B_Reconcilintion of present value of defined benefit obligation
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Balance at beginning of the reporting period 90.56 95.95
Current service cost 6.68 6.27
Interest cost 6.07 6.33
Actuarial (gain)/ loss recognised in other comprehensive income
- changes in demographic assumptions 1.31 -
- changes in fi ial ptions (9.06) (0.91)
- experience adjustments (1.20) (17.09)
Balance at the end of the reporting period 94.37 90.56

| Net defined benefit (liability) | 94.37 | 90.56 |
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Asianet Digital Network Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in millions)

C (i) Expenses recognised in the statement of profit & loss account

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Current service cost 6.68 627
Interest cost 6.07 633
Gratuity cost 12,78 12.61
(ii) Remensurements recognised in other comprehensive income
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Actuarial (gain)/loss on defined benefit obligation (8.95) (17.99)

D Defined Benefit Obligation

(i) Assumptions used to determine benefit obligations:
Principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted average)

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Discount rate 6.70% 6.70%
Future salary growth 6.00% 7.00%
Attrition rate 7.00% 2.00%
Interest rate for interest on net DBO 6.70% 6.60%
Mortality Rate TALM 2012-14 (Ult.) JTALM 2012-14 (Ult.)
Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation 7 years 10 vears

Assumptions regarding future mortality experience are set in accordence with the published statistics by the Life Insurance Corporation of India
The Company assesses these assumptions with its projected long-term plans of growth and prevalent industry standards. The discount rate is based on the government securities
yield

(ii) Sensitivity analysis

R bly possible changes at the reporting date to one of the actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation by
the amounts shown below
Particulars 31 March 2022
1% Increase 1% Decrease
Discount rate (1% movement) (6.06) 6.78
Future salary growth (1% movement) 6.76 (6.15)
Withdrawal rate (1% movement) 0.19 (0.21)
31 March 2021
Particulars 31 March 2021 ]
1% Increase 1% Deuw’
Discount rate (8.42) 9.71
Future salary growth 9.59 (8.47)
Attrition rate (0.21) 0.23

Although the analysis does not teke account of the full distribution of the cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the
assumption shown

E Actuarial ptions for P d absences
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Discount rate 6.70% 6.70%
Future salary growth 6.00% 7.00%
Attrition rate 7.00% 2.00%

F Expense recognised in statement of profit or loss:
Defined contribution plan Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Contribution to provident fund 18.27 30.36
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33 Segment information

Ind AS 108 “Operating Segment” (“Ind AS 108") establishes standards for the way that public business enterprises report information about operating segments and related
disclosures about products and services, geographic ereas, and major customers. Based on the "management approach” as defined in Ind AS 108, Operating segments are to be
reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). Members of Board of the Company have been identified as
the CODM as defined by Ind AS 108 "Operating Segments”. All operating segments’ operating results are reviewed regularly by the Company’s CODM to make decisions about
resources to be allocated to the segments and assess their performance

The Company has structured its business broadly into two verticals — Ceble Television Services and Others - includes Cable channel services, sale of goods and support service
income. The accounting principles consistently used in the preparation of the financial statements ere also consistently applied to record income and expenditure in individual
segments

Income and direct expenses in relation to segments are categorised based on items that are individuelly identifiable to that segment, while the remainder of costs are apportioned
on &n appropriate basis Certain expenses are not specifically allocable to individual segments as the underlying services are used interchangeably. The Company therefore
believes that it is not practical to provide segment disclosures relating to such expenses and accordingly such expenses are separately disclosed as unallocable and directly
charged against total income. Similarly certain essets and liabilities of the Company are used interch bly between which have been disclosed as unallocated assets
and liabilities

A. Business segments:
The business segments of the Company are as follows:
i) Cable Television Services

ii) Others
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Segment revenue
Cable Television Services 2,997.29 2,901.83
Others 141.84 129.61
Total 3.139.13 3.031.43
Scgment results before tax
Cable Television Services 1,370.85 1,374.54
Others 50.65 51.08
Total 1,421.49 1.425.62
Less :
Finance cost (58.00) (56.13)
Other un-allocable expenditure net of un-allocable income (1,358.29) (1,310.96)
Profit before tax 5.20 58.53
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Segment assets
Cable Television Services 1,514.28 1,806.39
Others 41.93 51.60
Unallocated 1,068.13 1,009.34
Total 2,624.34 2,867.33
Segment liabilities
Cable Television Services 794.25 897.28
Others 9.94 1473
Unallocated 856.38 1,006.06
Total 1,660,57 1,918.06

The Company operates in a single geographical location

No major customer has contributed more than 10% of the Company's total revenue.
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34 Financial Instruments - Fair values and risk management
A Accounting classifications and fair values
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy

31 March 2022

Carrying amount Fair value
Particulars Note Fi ial Mandatorily | Other fi inl Total Level 1 Level 2 | Level 3
assets at at FYTPL liabilities at Carrying
amortised cost amortised cost value
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Cash and cash equivalents 11 18.46 - - 18.46 - - -
Other bank balances 12 18.05 - - 18.05 - - -
Trade receivables 10 312.92 - - 312.92 - - -
Loans 6 324 - - 3.24 - - -
Other financial assets 13 50.61 - - 50.61 - - -
Financial assets measured at fair value
Investments 9 - 492 .60 - 492 60 - 492 60 -
Total 403.28 492.60 - 895.88 - 492.60 -
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Trade payables 19 - - 533.67 533.67 - - -
Borrowings 15 - - 515.05 515.05 - - -
Lease liabilities 36 - - 30.64 30.64 - - -
Other financial liabilities 16 - - 100.95 100.95 - - -
Total - - 1,180.31 1,180.31 - - -
31 March 2021
Carrying amount Fair value
Particulars Note Financial Mandatorily | Other financial Total Level 1 Level2 | Level3
Assets
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Cash and cash equivalents 11 19.75 - - 19.75 - - -
Other bank balances 12 16.71 - - 16.71 - - -
Trade receivables 10 348.59 - - 348.59 - - -
Loans 6 3,22 - - 3.22 - - =
Other financial assets 13 13.96 - - 13.96 - - -
Financial assets measured at fair value
Investments 9 - 621.02 - 621.02 - 621.02 -
Total 402.23 621.02 - 1,023,258 - 621.02 -
Financial liabilities not measured at (air value
Trade payables 19 - - 827.72 827.72 - - -
Borrowings 15 - - 480.46 480.46 - - -
Lease liabilities 36 - - 20.00 20.00 - - -
Other financial liabilities 16 - - 9213 92,13 - - -
Total - - 1,420.31 1,420.31 - - -

The Company has not disclosed the fair values for financial instruments such as cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, etc., because their carrying amounts
are a reasonable approximation of fair value,

Measurement of fair values

The fair value of the financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis. The discount rates used is based on management estimates.

Level 1 fair values

Investment in equity shares that has a quoted price and which are actively traded on the stock exchanges. It is been valued using the closing price es at the reporting period on the
stock exchanges.

Level 2 fair values

Investment in mutual funds - is unquoted price and are observable for the asset or linbility, either directly (i.e, as prices) or indirectly (i.e, derived from prices)

Level 3 fair values

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable data, the instrument is included in level 3.

The quantitative sensitivity analysis of level 3 fair value of financial instrument as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 has not been disclosed as it is not material to the
Company.
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i)

iii)

Financial Instruments- Fair values and risk management (continued)

Measurement of fair values

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of investments in mutual fund units is based on the net asset value ("NAV") as stated by the issuers of these mutual fund units in the published statements as at

balance sheet date. NAV represents the price at which the issuer will issue further units of mutual find and the price at which issuers will redeem such units from the investors

Financial risk management

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk

Risk management framework

The Company’s Board of directors have overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the risk management framewark

The Company’s Board of Directors oversees how management monitors compliance with the risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk
management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The Board is assisted in its oversight role by intenal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad-
hoe reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the Board

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to financial loss. The credit risk arises
principally from its operating activities {primarily trade receivables) and from its investing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions and other financial
instruments.

Credit risk is controlled by analysing credit limits and creditworthiness of customers on a continuous basis to whom credit has been granted after obtaining necessary approvals
for credit. The collection from the trade receivables are monitored on a continuous basis by the receivables team

The Company establishes an allowance for credit loss that represents its estimate of expected losses in respecl of trade and unbilled receivables based on the past and the recent
collection trend. The maximum exposure to the credit risk at the reporting date is primarily from trade receivables and unbilled receivables

The Company's exposure to credit risk for trade receivables based on type of customers are as follows -

The movement in allowance for credit loss in respect of trade and unbilled receivables during the reporting period was as follows:

Allowance for credit loss As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Balance at the beginning 286,74 27336
Impairment loss recognised 53.91 1338
Bad debts written off (18.09) -
Balance at the end 322.56 286.74

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets.

No single customer accounted for more than 10% of the revenue as of 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021. There is no significant concentration of credit risk

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalent and other bank balances is limited as the Company generally transacts with banks and financial institutions with high credit ratings
assigned by intemnational and domestic credit rating agencies

The company allocates each exposure to a credit risk grade based on the historic trend of receivables movement between the ageing buckets. The loss rates are calculated based
on the simple average of the trend in receivable ageing.

Ageing period Average loss rate

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Nol due 41.72% 0.10%
Less than 6 months 33.10% 12.77%
6 months - 1 year 53.17% 4935%
1 -2 years 76.58% 74.67%
2 -3 years 100.00% 100.00%
More than 3 vears 100.00% 100.00%

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another
financial esset. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under
both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unaccepteble losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation

The Company believes that the working capital along with its unutilised credit facilities are sufficient to meet its current requirements. Accordingly, no liquidity risk is
perceived

The table below provides details regarding the undi i contractual maturities of significant fi ial liabilities as of 31 March 2022

Particulars Less than 1 year More than 1 year Total
Trade payables 533.67 - 533.67

Borrowings 29341 221.64 515.05

Lease liabilities 895 3147 40.42

Other financial liabilities 40.15 60.80 100.95

Total 876.18 313.91 1,190.09

The table below provides details regarding the undi d contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as of 31 March 202,

Particulars Less than 1 year More than 1 year| Total
Trade payables 827.72 - 827.72

Bormowings 197.11 28335 480.46
Lease liabilities 533 2238 27.71

Other financial liabilities 29.97 62.16 92.13

Total 1,060.13 367.89 1,428.02
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iii)

Financial Instruments- Fair values and risk management (continued)

Fi ial risk t (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost includes cash and cash equivalents, deposits, etc. where the Company has assessed the counterparty credit risk. Trade receivables are
carried at amortised cost and is valued considering provision for allowance using expected credit loss method (if any). In addition to the historical pattern of credit loss, we have
considered the likelihood of increased credit risk and consequential default considering emerging situations due to COVID-19, This assessment is not based on any mathematical
model but an assessment considering the impact immediately seen in the demand outlook and the financial strength of the customers in respect of whom amounts are receivable
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest
rates and equity prices

Foreign currency risk
The Company is exposed to currency risk to the extent that there is a mismatch between the currencies in which transactions are denominated and the fanctional currency of the
Company. The functional currency of company is Rs., The currencies in which these transactions are primarily denominated is EUR and US dollar.

The summary quantitative data about the Company's exposure to currency risk (besed on notional amounts) as reported to the management is as follows

As at 31 March 2022 EUR USD
Borrowings (current and non-current) 53.58 .
Trade payables - 16.40
Other current financial liabilities 0.09 -
Net assets/(linbilities) (53.67) (16.40)
As at 31 March 2021 EUR UsD
Borrowings {(curent and non-current) 8563 -
Trade payables - 1.91
Other current financial liabilities 0.15 -
Net assels/(linbilities) (85.79) (1.91)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency denominated financial instruments.

As at 31 March 2022

Particulars Impact on profitor  Impact on equity, net
(Inss) of tax

USD Sensitivity

INR/USD - Increase by 1% (0.16) (0.12)

INR/USD - Decrease by 1% 0.16 0.12

EUR Sensitivity

INR/EUR - Increase by 1% (0.54) (0.40)

INR/EUR - Decrease by 1% 0.54 0.40

As at 31 March 2021

Particulars

Impact on profit or

Impact on equity, net

{loss) of tax
USD Sensitivity
INR/USD - Increase by 1% (0.02) (0.01)
INR/USD - Decrease by 1% 0.02 0.01
EUR Sensitivity - -
INR/EUR - Increase by 1% {0.86) (0.64)
INR/EUR - Decrease by 1% 0.86 0.64

Unhedged foreign currency exposure
As at 31 March 2022

Particulars Foreign currency Amount in foreign Amount in INR
currency

Foreign currency liabilities UsSD 0.22 16.40

EURO 0.63 53.67

As at 31 March 2021

Particulars Foreign currency Amount in foreign Amount in INR
currency
Foreign currency liabilities UsD 0.03 191
EURO 1.00 85.79

Cash Nlow and fair value interest rate risk

The Company's main interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings with variable rates, which expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk. The interest rate on the
Company’s financial instruments is based on merket rates. The Company menitors the movement in interest rates on an ongoing basis.
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34 Financial Instruments- Fair values and risk management (continued)

C Fi ial risk t (continued)
iv) Market risk (continued)

{a) Interest rate risk exposure

The exposure of the Company's borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the year are as follows:

Financial liabilities (bank borrowings) As al Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Variable rate long term borrowings including current maturities 409.06 325.66

Sensitivity
At at 31 March 2022

Particulars

Impact on profit or Impact on equity, net

(loss) of tax
Sensitivity
1% increase (4.09) (3.06)
1% decrease 4.09 3.06

At at 31 March 2021

Particulars [mpact on profit or Impact on equity, net
(loss) of tax

Sensitivity

1% increase (3.26) (2.44)

1% decrease 3.26 244

The interest rate sensitivity is based on the closing balance of secured term loans from banks
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Capital Management
Risk Management

The key objective of the Company's capital management is to ensure that it maintains a stable capital structure with the focus on total equity to uphold investor, creditor and
customer confidence and to ensure future developments of the business. The Company is focused on maintaining a strong equity base to ensure independence, security as well as

financial flexibility for potential future borrowings, if required, without impacting the risk profile of the Company
The capital structure as of 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 were as follows:

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Total liabilities 1,660.57 1,918.08
Less: cash and cash equivalents (18.46) (19.75)
Net debt (A) 1.642.11 1,898.33
Total equity (B) 963.77 949.27
Debt to equity ratio (A/B) 1.70 2.00

There are no changes in the Company's approach to capital management during the year. The Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

Leases

The Company has taken office premises on lease from various parties. The leases typically run for a period of 1 year - 15 years. Lease payments are renegotiated nearing the expiry

to reflect market rentals

(i) Lease liabilities

Follawiny are the changes in the lease liabilities for the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021,

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Balance at the beginning of the year 19.99 24.05
Additions 16.22 0.57
Finance cost accrued during the year (refer note 26) 2.01 1.96
Payment of lease liabilities {7.58) (6.59)
Balance at the end of the year 30.64 19.99
Non-current lease liabilities 24.05 16.29
Current lease liabilities 6.59 7
(76) Maturity analysis — contractual undiscounted cash flows
Particulars As al As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Less than one year 8.95 533
One to five years 19.41 12.27
More than five years 12,06 10.11
Total undi d lease liabilities 40.42 27.71
(iii) Right-of-use assets
Right-of-use assets are p | on the balance sheet,
Particulars As at As al
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Bal at the beginning of the reporting period 18.06 23.08
Addition to right-of-use assets 16.65 0.59
Depreciation for the reporting period (refer note 27) (6.15) (5.62)
Balance at the end of the reporting period 28.56 18.06§
fiv) A ¥ senni sed in of prafit or loss
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Depreciation on right-of-use assets (refer note 27} 6.15 5.62
Interest on lease liabilities (refer note 26) 201 1.96]
() Amounts recognised in st of cash flows
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Total cash out flow for leases 7.58 6.59
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(A) Related party relationships:

(a) Holding and Ultimate holding company

(b) Key managerial personne! (KMP)

Asianet Satellite Communications Limited

Mr. P S Suresh, Executive Director (w.e.f 14 October 2020)

G Sankaranarayana, Director

Joby Mathew, Company Secretary

Mr. Sreerama Murthy Chaganti, Director (w.e.f 1 November 2021)

Mr. Ankit Rajiv Somani, Independent Director (w.e.f | December 2021)

(B) Details of related party transactio

Name of the Nature of Transaction Volume of transactions for the year ended Outstanding balance as at
Related Party 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Asianet Satellite |Expenses incurred by holding company on behalf 7.91 (64.16)
Communications |of Company *
Limited Operating expenses
(formerly known Consumption of stores, spares and consumables| (0.46) (0.04)
as Asianet Pole rent / inspection charges (15.74) (5.81)
Satellite Power (network) (2.38) (1.25)
C jcations Repairs & mai - machinery (5.13) (25.17)
Private Limited) Lease/ bandwidth charges (4.01) (5.46)
Programme production expenses (0.00) -
Finance costs
Interest on bank borrowings (0.51) (2.98)
Employee benefits expense
Salaries and allowances (1.09) (9.15)
Contributions to provident and other funds 0.25 (15.23)
Staff welfare expenses (5.25) (11.69)
Other expenses
Advertising and marketing (0.46) (0.50)
Asset usage charges (96 57) (86.16)
ication (4.00) (3.80)
Electricity charges (1.85) (1.07)
Legal and professional (21.00) (0.82)
Miscellaneous expenses (1.25) (0.32)
Office p (4.54) (3.00)
Printing and stationery (1.08) (1.08)
Rates and taxes (0.93) (0.11)
Repairs and - buildings (0.80) (0.26)
Repairs and - others (2.18) (5.30)
Travelling and conveyance (3.75) (3.55)
Contract labour (148.00) (157.67)
Expenses incurred by the Company on behalf of
holding company
Other aperating revenues
Support service income (31.81) (38.17)
Employee benefits expense
Salaries and allowances (7.05) (27 45)
Other expenses
Contract Labour (24.26) -
Purchase of capital goods (165 44) (14.25)
Interest on loan - (5.40)
Guarantee commission received 10.17 9.06
Guarantee commission paid (3.07) (2.20)
Advance for capital goods - 130.00 - 130.00
Guarantee given 42204 (367.11) (1,967.78) (1,545.74)
Guarantee received (31.67) {289.41) 515.05 483 38

*The expenses incurred by the Holding company on behalf of the Company includes amount incurred in respect of short term employee benefits of KMP.
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as Revenue from contracts with customers

(a) R is disaggregated by major products / service lines and timing of recognition are as follows:
L ng Fution u

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

Timing of Revenue Recognition

Products and services transferred at a point in time 57.19 3127
Products and services transferred over time 3,081,94 3,000.16
3,139.13 3,031.43
(b)  Contract Balances
The following table provides information about Contract assets and liabilities from contract with customers
Particulars As at Asal
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Trade receivables (refer note 10) 31292 348.59
Advance from customers (refer note 18} 210.11 228.80
Unearned revenue (refer note 18) 130,12 136.91
39 Ratios as per the Schedule III requirements
{n) Current Ratio
Particulars As al As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Total current assets 948.05 1,144 00
Total eurrent liabilities 1,221.29 1,454.70
Current ratio 77.63% 78.64%
% Change from previous year -1.29% 15.74%
{b} Debi Equity Ratio
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Borrowings 515.05 480.46
Total equity 963.77 94927
Debt equity ratio 53.44% £0.61%
% Change from previous year 5.59% -0.95%
_(€) Debit Service Caverage Ratio
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Profit after tax for the year 7.80 60.44
Add: Non cash operating expense and finance cost 405.90 397.04
Depreciation and amortisation expense 347.90 34091
Finance costs 58.00 56.13
Earnings available for deb¢ services 413.70 457.43
Interest on bank borrowings 47.89 37.50
Long term secured loans repaid 322.08 142,16
Total interest and principal repayments 369.97 179.66
Debt service coverage ratio 111.82% 254.63%
% Change from previons year -56.09% -84.55%

Reason for change more than 25%:

This ratio was reduced by 84.55% for the year ended 31 March 2021 since the repayment of long term secured loans started during the year ended that date. This ratio has
reduced by 56.09% for the year ended 31 March 2022 due to lower profitability and higher loan repayment due to new loans availed during the year ended 31 March 2022,

(d) Return on Equity Ratio

Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Profit after tax for the year 7.80 60.44
Total equity 963.77 949 27
Return on equity ratio 0.81% 6.37%
% Change from previous year -87.29% 64.40%

Reason for change more than 25%:

This ratio was increased by 64.40% for the year ended 31 March 2021 owing to the better profitability achieved in the year ended that date. This ratio has reduced by 87.29%
for the year ended 31 March 2022 due to lower profitability owing to increase in network transmission expenses, impairment losses and competitive business environment in

the cable television services segment.

(e) Inventory Turnover Ralio

Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Purchases of stock-in-trade 50.67 23.65
Stock-in-trade 6.64 7.84
Inventory turnover ratio 7.63 3.02
% Change [rom previous year 152.88% 10.65%

Reason for change more than 25%:

The ratio increased by 152.88% for the year ended 31 March 2022 due to the increase in the purchases of Household equipments, kitchen utensils, electronic items etc during

the year ended 31 March 2022
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39 Ratios as per the Schedule ITI requirements (continued)

(f) Trade Receivahles Turnover Ratio

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Revenue from operations 3,139.13 3,031.43
Net trade receivables 312.92 348.59
Trade receivahles turnover ratio 1003.17% 869.63%
% Change from previous year 15.36% 65.63%
Reason for change more than 25%:
The ratio increased by 65 63% for the year ended 31 March 2021 due to the better collection policies adopted during the year
(g) Trade Puynhles Turnover Ratio
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Purchases / expenses* (refer note below) 2,434.97 2,302.81
Trade payables 533,67 82772
Trade payables turnover ratio 456.27% 278.21%
% Chnnge from previous year 64.00% -12.23%

Note: Purchases / expenses is calculated by reducing expenditure on CSR activity, Net loss on account of foreign exchange fluctuations, bank charges and commission from

the total of operating expenses, purchases of stock-in-trade and other expenses

Reason for change more than 25%:

Mejority of the trade payables as on 31 March 2021 were paid through ATREDS during the year ended 31 March 2022 due to which the ratio increased by 64.00%
Payments made through ATREDS would be automatically posted on due dates and hence there was a reduction in the average credit period

_(h) Net Capital Turnover Ratio

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Revenue from operations 3,139,13 3,031.43
Net working capital* (refer note below) (273.24) (310.70)
Net capital turnover ratio -1148.85% -975.68%
% Change from previous year 17.75% 62.46%
Note: Net working capital is calculated by reducing total current liabilities from total current assets
Reason for change more than 25%:
The ratio was increased by 62.46% in the year ended 31 March 2021 due to the impro ts in the bal of net working capital during the year.
(i) Net profit ratio
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Profit after tax for the year 7.80 60.44
Revenue from operations 3,139.13 3,031.43
Net profit ratio 0.25% 1.99%
% Change from previous year -87.54% 81.26%

Reason for change more than 25%:

"This ratio was increased by 81.26% during the year ended 31 March 2021 due to the increased profitability achieved during the year. This ratio was decreased by 87.54%

primarily due to lower profitability due to the increased competition in the cable television services segment.

() Return on Capital Employed

Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Profit before tax 5.20 58.53
Add: Finance costs 58.00 56.13
Less: Other income 31.99 45.63
Earnings before interest and tax 31.21 69.03
Capital employed 873.94 755.17
Total assets 2,624.34 2,867.35
Total current liabilities 1,221.29 1,454.70
Investments 492.60 621.02
Cash and cash equivalents 18.46 19.75
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 1805 16.71
Return on capital employed 3.57% 9.14%
% Change from previous year -60.93% -18.43%

Reason for change more than 25%:

This ratio was decreased by 60.93% primarily due to lower profitability owing to the increased competition in the cable television services segment

- - '—'-.\‘_\
/o WSSO0,




Asianet Digital Network Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in millions)

40

41

42

Covid-19 pandemic has been rapidly spreading throughout the world, including India. Government in India has taken significant measures to curb the spread of the virus
including imposing mandatory lockdowns and restrictions in activities, Management believes that it has taken into account all the possible impacts of known events arising
from COVID-19 pandemic and the resultant lockdowns in the preparation of the financial statements including but not limited to its assessment of Company's liquidity
position and recoverable values of its property, plant and equipment. However, given the effect of these lockdowns on the overall economic activity, the impact assessment of
COVID-19 on the above mentioned financial statement captions is subject to significant estimation uncertainties given its nature and duration and, accordingly, the actual
impacts in future may be different from those estimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements. The Company will continue to monitor any material changes to
future economic conditions and consequential impact on these financial statements,

a) No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in ather persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

b) No funds have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

Consequent to amendments made in Schedule Il of Companies Act, 2013, being made effective from | April 2021, previous year numbers pertaining to rent and other
deposits amounting to Rs. 2,92 million have been reclassified from “"Loans (non current)” to "Other financiel assets (non current)'and Rs. 10.93 million have been reclassified
from "Loans (current)” to "Other financial assets (current)", "Current maturities of long-term borrowings" amounting to Rs, 127,94 million have been reclassified from "Other
financial liabilities (current)" to "Borrowings (current). Further, "dues to creditors for expenses and others” amounting to Rs. 120.39 million have been reclassified from
"Other financial liabilities (current)" to "Trade payables - Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises"
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